
    

Memorandum  
  

To:   Planning Commission  

From:   Elizabeth J Corwin, PE, AICP; Planning Director  

Date:   November 7, 2024  

Re:   PLU 24‐0039 
Nonnie’s Best Food Truck 

3365 W Highland Rd 
PIN  11‐30‐200‐017  

 
For your consideration, applicant Wendy Hiebert proposes a temporary land use permit to allow her 

to operate the Nonnie’s Best food truck at 3365 W. Highland Road, aka Authentic Kitchen & Design 

owned and operated by Matt Whelan.  The truck has operated out of an adjacent vacant lot for the 

last six months under a temporary land use permit.  The vacant site is ineligible for further permits 

during this calendar year due to its status as an undeveloped site.  The applicant has appeared 

previously before the Planning Commission to request ordinance changes that would allow greater 

latitude in the issuance of temporary permits. 

The application has very few details of the operation.  The applicant submitted an aerial photograph 

illustrating her proposed placement of the trailer and a floor plan of the trailer.  Staff pulled the 

survey of the site submitted in 2017 as part of a sketch plan approval of a barn at the rear of the site 

to provide a clearer context of the property lines. We also pulled the documentation from a previous 

variance request for the site signage. 

The property line is about 12 or 13 feet south of the sidewalk that crosses the site.  The power pole 

on the site is the most recognizable landmark you could use to get a sense of the location of the 

right‐of‐way, as well as the north edge of the signage.  This leaves about a nine foot wide grassy strip 

between the right‐of‐way line and the back of concrete curbing.  This grassy strip is supposed to be 

the required landscape buffer and should be planted with three or four street trees. 

The area proposed by the applicant seems infeasible when one compares it to the size of the concession 

trailer, especially given the fact that the grassed area is bounded by curbs. The grassy area is approximately 35 

feet by 9 feet, whereas the concession trailer measures 37 foot by 9 foot (including the hitch) The Township 

cannot approve use of the right‐of‐way. 
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If a more appropriate location can be identified on this site, there are also details that should be included in 

the conditions of any permit that might be approved.  These include hours of operation, trash management, 

sound and lighting consideration, any seating that might be provided, parking for customers, and other 

pertinent factors that concern you regarding the appropriateness of the temporary land use at this site.  The 

applicant has requested that this permit run for the remainder of 2024. 

Although I understand the desire of the applicant to remain near the site where customers have come to expect 

the truck to be parked, I believe the Planning Commission has been clear in its message that an undeveloped site is 

not appropriate for long term use in this manner.  For the coming year, the applicant should be encouraged to 

work with the property owner to properly plan and improve the site adjacent to 3365 W. Highland Road or identify 

a different site with the proper access and infrastructure to manage the traffic to and from the food truck. 
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Memorandum 
 
To: Zoning Board of Appeals Member 
From: Elizabeth J. Corwin, PE, AICP  Planning Director 
Date: October 4, 2019 
Re: Case 19-26  

11-30-200-017 
3365 W Highland Road 
Variance is for a sign 
 

 
The case before you involves placement of a new sign at the site of the recently remodeled kitchen 
design center for MJ Whelan.  The site was previously developed in 1980 as the outlet for a boat 
dealer, and has since housed other uses such as pool sales and used auto sales.   Over the years there 
has been some confusion over the M-59 right-of-way limits, as this site has a deeper right-of-way 
than its neighbors.  The sign from the previous business was actually located in the right-of-way. 
 
The site was approved for redevelopment as the kitchen center in 2017.  As part of the site plan 
review, the Planning Commission acknowledged the issues surrounding right-of-way, but left the 
resolution to be determined during the permitting process.  The site plan does require the continued 
provision of the marginal access drive, which is set only about 10 feet south of the right-of-way line. 
 
The applicant has submitted a plot plan, and sign plans 
 
Staff has provided an aerial photo, excerpts from the zoning map, and copies from the assessing 
record.  Note that the aerial photograph from the County’s GIS system seems to indicate a 30 foot 
half width ROW, which is incorrect.  The 60 foot half width ROW has been confirmed with MDOT. 
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